
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2020 AT 6:30 PM 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
(MEETING WILL NOT BE HELD AT THE TOWN HALL) 

 

TELEPHONE: 
    DIAL (FOR HIGHER QUALITY, DIAL A NUMBER BASED ON YOUR CURRENT LOCATION): 

        US: +1 253 215 8782 OR +1 346 248 7799 OR +1 669 900 9128 OR +1 301 715 8592 OR +1 312 626 6799 OR 

+1 646 558 8656  
MEETING ID: 854 9678 0154 

 

EXPLANATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Trustees receive the first opportunity to discuss each agenda item. Following Trustee discussion, the Mayor will 
open the meeting for public comment. Each person will receive the opportunity to speak one time on each 

agenda item.  The Mayor will provide the time allotted for public comment prior to the agenda item 
discussion.  At the end of the time allotted the speaker will be muted and will not be recognized again for 

discussion of the same agenda item. If you wish to speak, press *9 on your phone to let us know. 
 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Staff Reports 
1. Administrator’s Report 

    COVID-19 Update 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Disbursements 
2. Treasurer’s Report 

3. Disbursements 

4. End of Year Disbursement Approval 

Regular Business 
5. Advisory Water Committee Appointments 

6. Acquisition of Snowplow Spreader 

7. 2020-22 Accepting Coordinated Election Results 

8. Resolution 2020-23 Mill Levy 

9. Resolution 2020-24 Budget for 2021 

10. Resolution 2020-25 Local Disaster Declaration Extension 

11. Governmental Affairs & Public Safety Committee – Accessory Dwelling Unit - Update 

Consent Agenda 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

Regular Minutes: 

November 10, 2020 

Mayor’s Report 
12. Christmas Light Judges 

Committee Reports 
13. Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Tree Board 

Executive Session 

14. For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not involving: any specific 

employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open session; any member of this body or any 

elected official; the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official; or 

personnel policies that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees; specific 

to Town Administrator 6-month review. 

For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 

questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); Specific to Eric Pace v. Town of Paonia 

 

Adjournment 
  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

4



 

December 10, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Administrator’s Report 

    Previous Visitors & Guests Follow-Up 

    COVID-19 Update 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VW – verbal warning 

WW – written warning 

CIT - citation 

CAA – clear adult arrest 

UTL – unable to locate 

UNF - unfounded 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

: 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

5



 

 

 

  

Administrators Report for December 15, 2020 

Previous Meeting Follow-up: 

1. A question arose about the Board making motions during the November 3rd Work Session on the 
proposed 2021 Budget.  While not usual to make official motions during a work session, it was 
deemed the clearest way to provide consensus to staff regarding information to be presented at 
the following meeting.  Resolutions, following the direction of the Board from the work session, 
were on the agenda for Board review and decision-making at the November 10th regular meeting. 
The header for the section of the agenda stated Unfinished Business, which was an error.  The 
agenda no longer has an unfinished business and new business section; all items are listed under 
Regular Business. 

2. Ranger repairs question – disbursements – the November 10th disbursement labeled water 
repairs was for ranger parts.  An order was made for parts needed to repair/replace bushings, 
power steering box, and solenoid for the wench.  Some parts were on back order, so the town 
was billed as the parts came in – two separate invoices.  11/10 $921.42 and 11/24 $1,884.98 for a 
total of $2,806.40.  These are the first repairs needed for the ranger outside routine maintenance 
– oil change, spark plugs, etc.  The disbursement on 11/10 was labeled water repair because the 
ranger costs come from the water enterprise fund, as the ranger is used to access the springs 
and spring lines.  Moving forward we will be sure to note what the invoice is for, not the account 
paid out of.  There is not room for both. 
 

Updates: 

1. 2nd Street Repairs – Complete for 2020 
2. SGM – mapping – waterline map substantially complete and provided to JDS Hydro for 

infrastructure analysis. Sewer line map redlines scheduled for completion and submittal to SGM 
by December 18th. SGM will then implement the redlines for completion of the map. 

3. SGM – Asset Inventory – on-site inventory complete – compiling data now. 
4. SCADA System at 1MG – Installation began November 17th. On-site today, December 2nd to install 

remote access functions.  Browns Hill and Phonz + are finishing the static i.p. and connectivity 
components. Contractor anticipates fully functional by December 18th. 

5. Public auction – I have created an account for an online public auction site that fulfills the 
requirements for government auctions. The company is used by many different communities 
throughout Colorado.  The police department and public works department are inventorying, 
and we plan to have a resolution to declare items surplus on an agenda in January.  Once the 
Board approves the resolution, we will upload photos and item information to the site for sale. 

6. COVID-19 sewer testing – there are no labs in the area that are providing this test.  While local 
data for COVID would be incredibly helpful, and the county is unwilling to provide the data at this 

From the Desk of Corinne Ferguson                                                   
Town Administrator/Clerk 
12/10/2020 

6



 

time, all the lab testing would tell us is that someone at some point used facilities that are 
connected to our system.  We know there are individuals in our community that have or have had 
COVID-19.  Should testing become available we will assess the cost vs. benefit of performing it 
and bring that information to the Board. 

7. Scheduling with David Jacobson to record a virtual tour of the water and sewer plants. Most 
likely to occur in January. 

8. Sidewalks – C&N Construction scheduled for completion by December 14th  
9. Grants – CVRF - The Town has received its first reimbursement of CARES Act funds from DOLA.  

Our final reimbursement request will be submitted this month.  CDOT Revitalize Main Street – 
reimbursement request submitted.  Second phase – installing tables and bench seating at and 
around Town Hall is underway. This phase supports the COVID -19 objective to offer outdoors 
areas for people and reduce congregating inside shops and restaurants. GOCO Parks Master Plan 
– The steering committee has finalized the four topics for community meetings, to take place 
after the new year.  That information will drive the final draft plan. 

Other items: 

1. Countywide housing study – This discussion topic never went beyond a discussion.  With Elyse 
Casselberry moving to City of Delta I do not anticipate this will be moving forward soon. In the 
meantime, I am evaluating other options to complete a local study. 

2. Tree Inventory and Assessment – the State Forest Service inventory and assessment should be 
complete and received by the end of January 2021. 

3. I received one complaint regarding the methods of tree trimming by the Town’s contractor. I 
have spoken with Ms. Kami Long at the forest service and will be evaluating training 
opportunities for contractors we use in the future as well as steps that need to be taken on 3 
trees improperly pruned. 

4. Dates on Resolutions – historically, budget resolutions were dated to begin January 1, in line with 
new budgets.  The issue with this methodology is that the Town budgets for 12 months receipt of 
the modified rates and with a January 1 start date we only collect the adjusted revenues for 11m 
months in the calendar year.  As a reminder, the Board may evaluate and modify rates at any 
time – this is not tied specifically to the budget review and implementation timeline.  Resolutions 
go into effect upon the date in the resolution. Ordinances go into effect 30 days after adoption 
and publication, unless deemed an emergency. 

5. Invitations have been made to individuals who expressed interest in participating in the 
Marijuana working group.  I intend to schedule four work sessions to discuss each area of the 
ordinance.  We plan to have the Marijuana Enforcement Division review and bring a draft back to 
the Board no later than February.  

6. Building Department – I am in discussions with multiple other municipalities regarding the 
creation of one building department to serve the communities in Delta County. Paonia is the only 
municipality that has not updated to the 2018 IRC.  The work to do so was completed in March of 
this year and I plan to send out the updated Code after January 1st for the Board to review so we 
can move forward with the update as soon as possible. 

7



 

Form 9-1366 U.S. Department of the Interior Customer No: 6000001053 
(May 2018) U.S. Geological Survey Agreement No: 21REJFACO 127 
 Joint Funding Agreement Project No:   
 FOR WATER RESOURCES INVESTIGATIONS TIN #: 980204600 
 
 
 

Fixed Cost 
Agreement X Yes  No 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the 1st day of January, 2021 by the U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, Colorado Water 
Science Center, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, party of the first part, and the TOWN OF PAONIA, party 
of the second part. 
 
1. The parties hereto agree that subject to the availability of appropriations and in accordance with their respective authorities there shall be 

maintained in cooperation Water Resource Investigations, operation and maintenance of the streamflow gaging station, 09134100 
North Fork Gunnison River below Paonia, CO, herein called the program. The USGS legal authority is 43 USC 36C; 43 USC 50; and 43 
USC 50b. 

  
2.  The following amounts shall be contributed to cover all of the cost of the necessary field and analytical work directly related to this program. 

2(b) includes In-Kind Services in the amount of $0.00. 
  
 (a) $2,015.00  by the party of the first part during the period   
     July 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021 
 
 (b) $4,089.00  by the party of the second part during the period 
     July 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021 
 
 (c)  Contributions are provided by the party of the first part through other USGS regional or national programs, in the amount of: 
 
   $0.00   Description of USGS regional/national program: NA 
  
 (d)  Additional or reduced amounts by each party during the above period or succeeding periods as may be determined by mutual   

agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties. 
 
 (e) The performance period may be changed by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties. 
 
3.  The costs of this program may be paid by either party in conformity with the laws and regulations respectively governing each party. 
 
4.  The field and analytical work pertaining to this program shall be under the direction of or subject to periodic review by an authorized 
representative of the party of the first part. 
 
5.  The areas to be included in the program shall be determined by mutual agreement between the parties hereto or their authorized 
representatives. The methods employed in the field and office shall be those adopted by the party of the first part to insure the required 
standards of accuracy subject to modification by mutual agreement. 
 
6.   During the course of this program, all field and analytical work of either party pertaining to this program shall be open to the inspection of the 
other party, and if the work is not being carried on in a mutually satisfactory manner, either party may terminate this agreement upon 60 days 
written notice to the other party. 
 
7.  The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those records. Upon request, copies of the original 
records will be provided to the office of the other party.  
 
8.  The maps, records or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as promptly as possible. The maps, records or 
reports normally will be published by the party of the first part. However, the party of the second part reserves the right to publish the results of 
this program and, if already published by the party of the first part shall, upon  request, be furnished by the party of the first part, at cost, 
impressions suitable for purposes of reproduction similar to that for  which the original copy was prepared. The maps, records or reports 
published by either party shall contain a statement of the cooperative relations between the parties.  The Parties acknowledge that scientific 
information and data developed as a result of the scope of work are subject to applicable USGS review, approval, and release requirements, 
which are available on the USGS Fundamental Science Practices website (https://www.usgs.gov/about/organization/science-support/science-
quality-and-integrity/fundamental-science-practices). 
 
9.  Billing for this agreement will be rendered semi-annually (September and October).  Invoices not paid within 60 days from date of bill will 
bear Interest, Penalties, and Administrative costs as the annual rate pursuant the Debt Collection Act of 1982, (codified at 31 U.S.C. 3717) 
established by the U.S. Treasury. 

 
 
 
 
 

8



Form 9-1366 U.S. Department of the Interior Customer No: 6000001053 
(May 2018) U.S. Geological Survey Agreement No: 21REJFACO 127 

Joint Funding Agreement Project No:   
FOR WATER RESOURCES INVESTIGATIONS TIN #: 980204600 

Fixed Cost Agreement X Yes  No 

USGS Technical Point of Contact 
Name: Steve Anders 
Title: Supervisory Hydrologic Tech 
Address: 445 W. Gunnison Ave Suite 130 
City/State/Zip: Grand Junction, CO 81501 
Telephone: 970-628-7140 
Fax: 970-245-1026 
Email: spanders@usgs.gov 

USGS Billing Point of Contact 
Name: Donna Hector 
Title: Administrative Officer 
Address: P.O. Box 25046, Denver Federal Center 
Address: Mail Stop 415 
City/State/Zip: Lakewood, CO 80225 
Telephone: 303-236-6903 
Fax: 303-236-4912 
Email: djhector@usgs.gov 

Customer Technical Point of 
Contact Name: Corinne Ferguson
Title: Town Administrator 
Address: P.O. Box 460 
City/State/Zip: Paonia, CO 81428 
Telephone: 970-527-4101 
Fax: 
Email: corinne@townofpaonia.com 

Customer Billing Point of Contact 
Name: Corinne Ferguson
Title: Town Administrator 

Address: P.O. Box 460 

City/State/Zip: Paonia, CO 81428 
Telephone: 970-527-4101 
Fax: 
Email: corinne@townofpaonia.com 

  U.S. Geological Survey 
        United States Town of Paonia 
   Department of Interior 

 SIGNATURE   SIGNATURES 

  By:_______________________________Date:____________     By:_______________________________Date:___________ 
   Name:   David Mau    Name: 
    Title:     Director, CWSC/USGS        Title: 

 By:_______________________________Date:___________ 
 Name:    
  Title:       

  By:_______________________________Date:___________ 
  Name: 
  Title: 

ROBERT KIMBROUGH
Digitally signed by ROBERT 
KIMBROUGH 
Date: 2020.12.02 14:35:17 -07'00'

9



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   11/15/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
20:44:56 ARSON

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD   A

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/16/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:31:46 SUSPICIOUS

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

11:53:45 SUICIDE/ATTEMPT MAIN ST, Delta, CO PPD PPD
17:13:22 Information GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   11/17/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
15:13:44 ANIMAL CONTROL 2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW
18:01:19 AGENCY ASSIST HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   11/19/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:52:34 Traffic Stop PPD CIT
17:14:30 VIN INSPECTION

Address
3rd Street,Paonia, CO 
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   11/20/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
02:15:36 WILDLIFE PPD PPD

18:11:40 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
18:32:54 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
19:07:56 Traffic Stop

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO

3rd Steet, Paonia, CO 
Grand Avenue, Paonia, CO 
3rd Street, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   11/21/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
17:48:52 ANIMAL CONTROL 2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

10



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/22/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
18:55:53 Medical/transfe

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/23/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:36:34 VIN INSPECTION PPD DIST3
13:26:42 Illegal Burning

Address
5TH ST, Paonia, CO 
FREEDOM AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   11/24/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:45:10 VIN INSPECTION

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

15:58:22 ANIMAL CONTROL PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UTL
16:26:36 Certified Vin PPD PPD
17:26:58 AGENCY ASSIST

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

18:12:38 SHOPLIFTING 2ND STREET, Paonia, CO   PPD PPD CIT
Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   11/25/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
12:09:45 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD CIT
13:15:48 VIN INSPECTION

PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO  PPD 
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   11/27/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:31:16 Traffic Stop

Address
Grand Avenue, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/28/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
20:52:25 Illegal Burning

Address
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   11/29/20

             PPD        

11



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 11/15/20` and `00:00:01 12/01/20`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
18:51:57 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD UTL
20:47:38 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
PAONIA AVE, Paonia, CO  
WILLOW RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   11/30/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:28:35 911/hangup PPD PPD
09:12:37 FIRE PPD DIST3

12:36:52 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
20:49:10 Medical/transfe

Address
VISTA DR, Paonia, CO
HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Total reported: 31

A-1, VW-2, CIT-7, UTL-212



 

 

 P.O. Box 3310, 130 N. Park Avenue       Montrose, Colorado 81402               T: 970-249-7000               F: 970-249-8440 

 

DEVOR & PLUMHOFF, LLC                                                                         Bo James Nerlin   

Attorneys and Counselors at Law                        bo@coloradowestlaw.com 

         

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Board of Trustees, Town of Paonia 

From:  Bo James Nerlin, Esq.  

Re:  Town Attorney Report 

Date:  12/11/2020 

CC: Ms. Corinne Ferguson  

 

 

   This memo is an outline of the recent projects that I have been working on as the Town 

Attorney. This memo is to serve as an outline and not a comprehensive list.  

 

Paonia Ditch Company 

Since providing a letter to the Paonia Ditch Company requesting financial assistance on 

behalf of the Town, with Paonia Ditch Culvert Pipe under the 200 block of Main Ave., I have not 

received a substantive response from the Ditch Company.  I have been directed to put forth one 

final letter expressing the Town’s position to the Ditch Company.   

 

 Police Department Matters 

 My goal in 2021 is to work with Judge Huffman, Chief Ferguson and the GAPS 

committee in updating the Town’s Municipal Court procedures and expanding the offenses that 

can be cited into Municipal Court vs. County Court.  Beginning in 2021, there are several items 

that the police department will need to be aware of with the June adoption of HB 2020-217.  I 

will work with Chief Ferguson in making sure appropriate deadlines are met.   

 

Resolution Certifying Election Results  

Included in the Board Packet is Resolution 2020-22 certifying the November 3, 2020 

election results.  As the funds that will be generated by Ballot Initiative 2D, and the Public 

Safety Sales Tax are to be used for very specific purposes, I am recommending that the Board set 

up separate budgetary line items to track these funds for public transparency.   

 

 Riverbank  

In late November – early December, Town staff, SGM, and our office had several 

substantive discussions with the developer regarding the draft subdivision application that has 

been submitted.  It has been determined that the initial draft subdivision application includes all 

of the required materials for submission; however, there are a number of engineering issues that 

need to be addressed.  The applicant is meeting with his team and will resubmit engineered plans 

in the coming weeks.  Thereafter, a Planning Commission Meeting will be scheduled.  All but 

our November invoice has been paid by the applicant as per the terms of the development 

reimbursement agreement.   

 

 

13

mailto:bo@coloradowestlaw.com


 

Board(s) 

CCC has not responded to my letter terminating the existing building official contract.  

Ms. Ferguson will provide an update for building official work beginning in 2021.  In January 

we will provide a draft ordinance updating the roles of the Board of Adjustments/ Board of 

Appeals, and Planning and Zoning.   

14



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

15



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

End of Year Disbursement Approval 

Summary:   

 

Board approval to pay payroll and disbursements through end of year, with review and 

ratification at the January 12, 2021 Regular Board meeting. 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

28



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Advisory Water Committee Appointments 

Summary:  On September 8, 2020, the Board adopted Ordinance 2020-09, establishing the 

creation of an Advisory Water Committee.  Included in the packet, in alphabetical order, are 

the applications received. 

 

 

Notes: 

 

Ordinance 2020-09 Section 2-10-20 (2) states: It is the preference of the Board of Trustees that, 

of those members of the public encompassing Committee membership, one (1) shall be an in-

Town water user, one (1) an out-of-Town water user, and one (1) an authorized representative 

of a local water company.  

 

Applications received from: 

 

Bill Brunner – In Town Water User 

*Phil Ceriani – Water Company Representative – ORC for Water System 

Mike Drake – Water Company Representative or Out of Town Water User 

Mike Heck – In Town Water User 

Chris Kendall – Water Company Representative or Out of Town Water User 

Thomas Markle – In Town Water User 

Robert Orlando – Water Company Representative or Out of Town Water user 

 

Committee Organization: 

The Committee shall have no less than 3 nor more than 5 members. 

 

1. Board of Trustee Member: ______________________ 

2. Public Works Department or Admin Staff: Travis Loberg/Corinne Ferguson 

3. Member of the Public:_________________________ 

4. Member of the Public:_________________________ 

5. Member of the Public:_________________________ 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Acquisition of Snowplow Spreader 

Summary:   

 

The 2020 budget includes $12,000 for equipment purchase in 2020.  Public Works & Utilities 

Director Travis Loberg requests Board approval to purchase a new8’ Meyer PolyHawk PV 

Spreader. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

The spreader fits in the back of a Town pickup truck. Available in in 6' and 8' lengths, 

Polyhawks are popular for spreading bulk materials like rock salt with sand mixed in it. 

 Performance: With the Meyer Polyhawk’s two internal and four external baffle 

adjustment systems, you will place the material in the right place, every time. Whether 

you want to spread four feet to the left, four feet to the right, or spread a 30-foot 

pattern, you can easily adjust the spreading pattern to meet your unique demands. In 

addition, the Polyhawk is engineered to handle virtually any material you can throw at 

it including salt, sand and salt/sand mix. 

1st choice Tractor Supply: $7,999 – Ships in 2 days 

2nd choice Varner Equipment: $8,507 – ships in 2 days 

West Park Equipment: Out of Business 

Northern Tool & Equipment: $7,070 – ships in 60 days 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

48



Meyer Products  

8 ft. Polyhawk Spreader, 63899  

 

Product Details  

Popular with contractors and other vocational users, the Meyer Products 63899 8 ft. Polyhawk 

Spreader is powered by a Honda gas engine. The Polyhawk can even be operated by your 

vehicle's central hydraulic system. 

 Perfect for spreading bulk materials like rock salt with sand mixed in it 

 2.0 cu. yd. capacity spreader 

 1 year limited warranty 

Specifications  

Specification Description 

Brand Meyer Products 

Warranty 1 year limited warranty 

Application/Use 8 ft. Polyhawk Spreader 

Country of Origin Made in USA 

Coverage Area 2.0 cu. yd. 

Hopper Capacity 2.0 cu. yd. 

Material Plastic 

Package Height 47 in. 

Package Length 148 in. 

Package Quantity 1 

Package Weight 1,055 lb. 

Package Width 54 in. 

Power Type Gas 

Spreading Material Rock salt with sand mixed 

Manufacturer Part Number 63899 

 

49

https://www.tractorsupply.com/tsc/brand/Meyer+Products?cm_re=Shop+By+Brand-_-Brand+Link-_-Meyer+Products


 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

2020-22 Accepting Coordinated Election Results 

Summary:   

A resolution accepting the results for Back the Badge, Allowing Retail and Medicinal 

Marijuana sales within Town limits, and the $5 per transaction fee. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

50



TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-22 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTESS OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, 

COLORADO CERTIFYING THE RESULTS OF THE NOVEMBER 3, 2020 ELECTION 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia is a statutory Town in Delta County, and a political subdivision 

of the State of Colorado; and  

 

WHEREAS, Delta County held its general election on November 3, 2020; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement by and between the Delta County Clerk 

and Recorder and the Town of Paonia, the Delta County Clerk and Recorder was the designated 

election official for the Town; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia had placed two ballot questions before the voters of the Town 

at the November general election, Ballot Initiative 2C and Ballot Initiative 2D; and  

 

WHEREAS, Delta County also had a Delta County Public Safety Improvements Sales Tax ballot 

question before the voters within the County; and  

 

WHEREAS, Ballot Initiative 2C, Ballot Initiative 2D and the Delta County Public Safety 

Improvements Sales Tax ballot questions all passed; and  

 

WHEREAS, with the passage of Ballot Initiative 2D, beginning in 2021 the Town will receive a 

$5.00 per transaction fee per the sale of marijuana within the Town; and  

 

WHEREAS, until 2025, revenue from Ballot Initiative 2D shall be used for infrastructure repair 

and improvements including but not limited to, Town streets, sidewalks, curb, gutters, drainage, 

landscaping, lighting and streetscaping amenities.   

 

WHEREAS, beginning in 2021, the Town of Paonia Police Department will receive up to 6% of 

the revenue generated from the Public Safety Improvements Sales Tax; and  

 

WHEREAS, the revenue from the Public Safety Improvements Sales Tax shall be used for the 
hiring, employing, training and equipping public safety personnel, including but not limited to, Deputy 

Sheriffs, police officers, Deputy Marshals and investigators;  Conducting and preparing criminal 

investigations; addressing security, safety, operations and maintenance costs at the Delta County 

Detention Facility and the Delta County Dispatch Center; and the payment of fees, costs, operational 

expenses, supplies, equipment and capital expenditures relating to public safety; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Delta County Clerk and Recorder certified the results of the November 3, 2020 

election on November 20, 2020; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees recognizes the results of the November 3, 2020 election, and 

the November 23, 2020 certification of the results by the Delta County Clerk and Recorder.  

51



 

 NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 

Town of Paonia as follows:  

 

1. The Town hereby recognizes and certifies the results of the November 3, 2020 General 

Election.   

  

2. The Town shall begin to receive revenue from Ballot Initiative 2D as early as January 

2021.  The Board approves the creation and adoption of a Marijuana Transaction Fund 

as a separate budgetary fund for transparency purposes, effective January 1, 2021.   

 

3. The Town shall begin to receive revenue from the Public Safety Sales Tax Fund as 

early as January 2021.  The Board approves the creation and adoption of a Public Safety 

Sales Tax Fund as a separate budgetary fund for transparency purposes, effective 

January 1, 2021.  

 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December 2020.   

 

 

Town of Paonia, Colorado  

  

By: 

__________________________________ 

 

        Mary Bachran, Mayor  

  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_____________________________________  

Corinne, Ferguson, Town Clerk  

 

 

  

52



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Resolution 2020-23 Mill Levy 

Summary:   

The formal adoption of the 2021 Mill Levy 2020-23. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Pattison: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

53



TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-23 

Resolution to Set Mill Levies 

A RESOLUTION LEVYING GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2020 TO 

HELP DEFRAY THE COST OF GOVERNMENT FOR THE TOWN OF PAONIA, 

COLORADO FOR THE 2021 BUDGET YEAR. 

WHEREAS the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for general operating 

purposes from property tax revenue is $134,107; and 

WHEREAS the 2020 valuation for assessment for the Town of Paonia, Colorado as certified by 

the County Assessor(s) is $16,114,704; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado;  

That for the purpose of meeting all general operating expenses of the Town of 

Paonia, Colorado during the 2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 8.322 

mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment of all taxable property 

within the Town for the year 2020; and 

That the Town Clerk and/or the Finance Director is hereby authorized and directed to 

immediately certify to the Board of County Commissioners of Delta County, 

Colorado, the mill levies for the Town of Paonia, Colorado as herein above 

determined and set. 

Adopted this 15th day of December 2020. 

 

Attest: 

              

Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk     Mary Bachran, Mayor 

 

 

54



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Resolution 2020-24 Budget for 2021 

Summary:   

The formal adoption of the 2021 Budget Resolution 2020-24. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Pattison: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

55



TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION  2020-24 
Resolution to Adopt Budget 

 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH 
FUND AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, FOR 
THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2021 AND 
ENDING THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2021. 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Trustees for the Town of Paonia, Colorado, appointed J. Corinne 
Ferguson, Town Administrator/Clerk and Cindy Jones, Finance Director to prepare and submit 
a proposed budget to said governing body at the time; and 
 
WHEREAS, J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator/Clerk and Cindy Jones, Finance 
Director, have submitted a proposed budget to this governing body on November 10, 2020 for 
its consideration; and 
 
WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published and posted in accordance with the law, said 
proposed budget was open for inspection by the Public at a designated place, a public hearing 
was held on November 24 2020, interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or 
register objection to said proposed budget; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees have made provision therein for the balance on hand and 
probable revenues equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth in said 
budget, and; 
 
WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the revenues 
provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, so as not to impair the operations 
of the Town, and; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 
Colorado;  
 
 Section 1.   That estimated expenditures for each fund are as follows: 

 General Fund    $1,509,764 

 Pass Through Grant Fund   $   460,000 

 Space-to-Create Fund    $     13,164 

 Conservation Trust    $     13,833 

 Capital Improvement Fund   $   486,527 

 Enterprise Fund       $2,078,546 
           
For a total of      $4,561,834 

56



Section 2.   That estimated revenues and prior year surplus for each fund are as follows: 

 General Fund    $1,455,759 

 Prior Year Surplus   $   507,079 

 Total                        $1,962,838 

 Pass Through Grant Fund   $   460,000 

 Prior Year Surplus   $              0 

 Total                        $   460,000 

 Space-to-Create Fund    $              0 

 Prior Year Surplus   $     13,164 

 Total                        $     13,164 

 Conservation Trust    $       7,495 

 Prior Year Surplus   $       6,338 

 Total     $     13,833 

 Capital Improvement Fund         $   217,940 

 Prior Year Surplus   $   328,779  

 Total                 $   546,719    

 Enterprise Fund        $2,078,546 

 Prior Year Surplus   $   653,371   

 Total         $2,731,917 
  

For a total of     $5,728,471   

Section 3. That the budget as submitted and herein above summarized by fund, the 

same is hereby approved and adopted as the Budget of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, for the year 2021. 

Section 4. For the purpose of meeting all expenditures of the General Fund during the 

2021 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 8.322 mills upon each dollar 

of the total valuation for assessment of all taxable property within the Town 

for the year 2021; and 

Section 5. The Town Administrator and the Finance Officer of the Town of Paonia are 

hereby authorized and directed to immediately certify to the Board of County 

Commissioners of Delta County, Colorado, the gross mill levy and the net mill 

levy for the Town of Paonia hereinabove determined and set. 

Section 6.  For the purpose of paying the necessary expenses and liabilities of the 

Town of Paonia for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2021, and for the 

purpose of appropriating monies to pay the sums set forth in the Budget of 

the Town, there is hereby appropriated from the balance on hand and the 

probable revenue of each fund to each fund for the ensuing year, the sum 

hereafter set for the following purposes: 

57



GENERAL FUND:  For the purpose of paying for General Government, 

Public Safety, Streets and Highways, Health and Welfare, Culture and 

Recreation, Inter-fund Transfers, maintaining and improving the sidewalks, 

maintaining and improving the streets, and other legal purposes, the sum of 

$1,509,764;  

PASS-THROUGH-GRANT FUND:  For the purpose of Pass-through 

grants which are those grants that are received by a recipient government 

to transfer to or spend on behalf of a secondary recipient, the sum of 

$460,000; 

SPACE-TO-CREATE FUND:  For the purpose of collaborative effort to 

provide affordable workforce housing and working spaces for creative sector 

and other acceptable uses as determined by the State of Colorado, the sum of 

$13,164; 

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND:  For the purpose of improving open 

space and other acceptable uses as determined by the State of Colorado, the 

sum of $13,833; 

SALES TAX CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND:  For the purpose of 

acquiring, constructing, improving, extending, and maintaining capital 

facilities of the Town funded by a 1% sales tax, the sum of $486,527; 

ENTERPRISE FUND:  For the purpose of maintaining, operating, 

improving and extending the water and sewer systems, and collection of 

garbage of the Town the sum of $2,078,546;  

Section 7. That the Budget as hereby approved and adopted, shall be signed by the 

Board of Trustees and made part of the public records of the Town. 

 

 

Adopted this 15th day of December 2020 

Attest: 

              

Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk    Mary Bachran, Mayor 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



 

1 
 

From: Paige Smith <paige@greenhousegarden.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 2, 2020 6:28 PM 
To: Mary B <maryb@townofpaonia.com>; Corinne Ferguson <corinne@townofpaonia.com>; Karen 
Budinger <karenb@townofpaonia.com>; Mick J <mickj@townofpaonia.com>; Michelle P 
<michellep@townofpaonia.com>; Dave K <DaveK@townofpaonia.com>; Tamie M 
<tamiem@townofpaonia.com>; Bill Bear <bbear@townofpaonia.com> 
Subject: Comments on the 2021 Proposed Budget  
  

Hello, 

Please see my comments below. I had asked at the Nov. 24th Board Meeting how public comments are 

handled? I haven't gotten a reply, so I'd like to ask again whether comments are usually included in the 

appropriate meeting AgendaPacket (if received in time for inclusion) and is there a response to these 

comments provided by the Town? You took care of this part.  

Thank you for the opportunity to comment, 
Paige Smith 
 
General Comment 
Presenting the proposed 2021 budget using two different platforms – ClearGov and spreadsheets 
embedded in the AgendaPacket provided for the Nov. 24, 2020, Board meeting has made it exceedingly 
difficult to reasonably review this budget. Town budgets from previous years have been totally stand-
alone, and all necessary spreadsheets have been included to provide for easier reference. I hope that 
after finalization of this budget, the final budget document contains all the pertinent spreadsheets to 
eliminate the confusion currently presented by having two sources of information. The drop-down 
topics (many of which have not been populated) and very generalized graphs and pie charts created in 

ClearGov are no substitute for the hard numbers provided in the spreadsheets.  I agree that the 
presentation of two incomplete formats made review difficult for some.  Following Board 
direction staff continues to populate and update information in ClearGov, which is the format 
the Town is using moving forward to prepare and present documents to the Board and 
community.  I have not, nor do I intend to task the finance officer with presenting a lengthy 
budget document in two separate formats. ClearGov is being updated on a daily basis. The 
spreadsheets provided in the packet on November 24th are identical to the spreadsheet 
information in ClearGov. 
Specific comments regarding the 2021 Budget Transmittal Letter 
1) ORGANIZATION, STAFFING AND BENEFITS – The budget presentations for 2018, 2019 and 2020 all 
provided a tabular summary of the staff salaries being proposed for each of these respective budget 
years in this introductory section. This presentation is extremely helpful for the reader to easily see 
proposed for staff salaries. I’m curious as to why it was not included (as had been done in the three 
previous years) in this budget transmittal letter intended as an overarching summary of the 2021 

budget? The Town’s Budget summary includes history, current information, and a snapshot in to 
the future as an added bonus that our finance officer provides but is not a requirement of the 
annual budget.  If you review other communities you will find that the Town’s budget includes 
substantially more information about the Town’s governance – as well as many other notable 
features of the community -  than others.  The Board has continually expressed the need to pull 
back from involvement in the day-today operations and unintentional micro-management of 

271

mailto:paige@greenhousegarden.com
mailto:maryb@townofpaonia.com
mailto:corinne@townofpaonia.com
mailto:karenb@townofpaonia.com
mailto:mickj@townofpaonia.com
mailto:michellep@townofpaonia.com
mailto:DaveK@townofpaonia.com
mailto:tamiem@townofpaonia.com
mailto:bbear@townofpaonia.com


 

2 
 

the Towns staff below direct reports – which led to the initial modification of some of the 
information provided, nor would I consider a summary the appropriate place to include 
detailed information. Prior to the implementation of the ClearGov platform our finance director 
used the budget transmittal letter/budget summary to include information that didn’t have a 
place on a spreadsheet.  Additional information will be removed from the submittal 
letter/budget message and will be included in the appropriate section of the budget book. 
Payroll is public information, included in the budget – located at the beginning of each fund – as 
well as included in disbursements each Board meeting and published in the newspaper of 
record monthly.   
 
While the information included in numbers 2 through 6 is valuable and constructive, the most 
appropriate time to have provided this for potential inclusions to the final budget was at the budget 
hearing which occurred on November 24th.  Some of the suggestions may be included in the final 2021 
budget, but this is not a guarantee.  Such suggestions will be considered for addition in future budgets. 
The details requested, while not included in the transmittal letter/budget summary, are in the fund 
summaries throughout the budget itself. 
2) PARKS 
Please provide budget amounts for each project listed below. In addition, please explain the status and 
price tag of what appears to be a continuation of two Apple Valley park projects – hill stabilization and 
trail/walking path. Is “complete the trail” the same as “complete walking path”? Yes, the trail and 
walking path are the same thing. We continue to work on updating documents to have continuity in 
titles and reporting methods. 

“COST SHARE PROJECT with the school district to improve the football field and uprights was planned 
for 2020 but was not completed and will continue into 2021.” (How much has been budgeted to 
complete this project?) In most cases the total costs for budgeted projects are appropriately included 
in the fund summaries sections of the budget. The detailed information will be included under the 
Departments section of the budget.  
“OTHER FUNDED PROJECTS IN PARKS are as follows:” 

“Poulos Park – SOD, sprinkler system, landscaping and planting.” (Cost?) 
“Town Park – re seeding and fertilizing, new tree planting.” (Cost?) 
“Applevalley Park – complete the trail, tree planting and hill stabilization.” (Cost?) 

  
“Started in 2020: 
“The Miner Memorial Wall is substantially complete, the second round of plaques were added, 
however there are some spaces still available.” 
“Improvement to the Peony Beds and the Baseball field” (Cost?) 
“Hill stabilization in Apple Valley Park” (Cost?) 
“Complete walking path at Apple Valley Park” (Cost?) 
“Install Curbing at Lee’s Park (required by CIRSA)” (Cost?) 
  
“Projects planned for 2021:” 
“Tree Trimming” (Cost?) 
“Playground shelter” (Cost?) 
“Lee's Park irrigation sprinkler system “(Cost?) 
“Lee's Park fencing” (Cost?) 

3) SPACE TO CREATE 

272



 

3 
 

What is the status of the Boettcher Foundation grant amount of $35,000? Was it spent? Is there a 
remaining portion that is being given back? Identified in the Treasurer report and disbursement packets, 
as well as in ClearGov under Fund Summaries – Space to Create the remaining budget amount in the 
account is approximately $13,000. We are waiting for direction from Boettcher Foundation regarding 
the use or refunding of the grant funds. The status of this grant should be included in this discussion.  In 
addition, in the Fund Summaries section of ClearGov, there is no indication that the Town of Paonia 
formally suspended further participation with the Space to Create program with the approval of 
enabling Resolution 2020-21 at the November 10, 2020, Board meeting. This section should be updated 
to reflect this decision. 
4) CONSERVATION TRUST FUND 
“In 2019, Conservation trust funds were used for tree trimming in the Town Park. In 2020, Conservation 
trust funds were used to improve the Town Park Playground. In 2021, Conservation trust funds are 
slated for Poulos Park upgrades and Bike Racks in Town Park.” What amount of grant funding is 
associated with the projects listed for 2021? Can you clarify what you mean?  Are you asking if grant 
funding will be used in addition to the Conservation Trust lottery funds to complete the projects in the 
parks? 
 5) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
“Town Hall Upgrades (including Building Code Update) $22,540” What does “building code update” 
mean?  Updating of the building code to include but not limited to adopting updated IBC/IRC’s, review 
and update of the current municipal code, permit process and fees. Does Town Hall need physical 
upgrades to meet building code or does this refer to the editing of the Town’s current adoption by 
reference of the 2003 International Residential Code? Please clarify and split out each of the projects by 
dollar amount. Other than finishing the enclosure of the finance directors office space upstairs Town 
Hall upgrades have not been identified but historically have included items like bathroom fixture 
replacement, plumbing repairs, carpet replacement in community room, painting, potential modification 
of unused spaces, etc.  The upstairs office completion has not been bid on to date so will only be 
completed if it falls within the budgeted funds and is approved appropriately per the purchase policy of 
the Town. 
6) ENTERPRISE FUNDS 2021 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 
“While no additional revenue increases were recommended for 2019, the Board approved increases for 
the 2020 budget. Additional increases are expected for 2021 as well.” Exactly what does “Additional 
increases are expected in 2021 as well” equate to in dollars? The Town staff provided projected 
numbers to the Board of where the funds were anticipated to fall short and what potential increases 
may be necessary.  While rates were adjusted for 2021,  we will need to continue review and evaluate 
rates in 2021.  We cannot accurately identify what that will look like until we begin to see revenues in 
the 2021 budget year, but this will be a topic of review throughout the year, instead of only during the 
budget sessions.  
These Enterprise funds and the services (water, sewer and trash collection) provided through these 
funds constitute approximately 50% of revenue and 56% of expenditures for the Town of Paonia and 
therefore, require a clear and through explanation for the public.  
6.a) Water As stated earlier, additional descriptive information is being added to ClearGov and we 
intend to include additional detail for these items as well – as time permits. In the meantime some 
definitions, including the definition of bond, is in the glossary under introduction, in the budget. 
This section should include a clear presentation of the anticipated increased costs associated with 
providing water to in-town and out-of-town users to explain to the public the reason for the increases. 
This section in the ClearGov Transmittal Letter includes a list of water system related expenditures. This 
list and the associated total proposed expenditures should be compared to the total revenue collected 
from water users in 2020 to clearly describe the budget shortfall, if these expenditures are the reason 

273



 

4 
 

for the shortfall? This level of transparency in this narrative document, would be helpful to citizens 
being asked to pay increased fees constituting increases of 6% to as much as 50%, especially in light of 
the fact that water rates were raised in 2017 and 2020.  
Water - Bond requirement: Please describe what these obligations mean and add dollar values to each of 
the items listed below.  

(Colorado Water Resources & Power Development Authority (WPA) Bond 
WPA requires water and sewer debt service to be budgeted at 110% (110% of what value?) 
WPA requires between water and sewer a 110% debt ratio (What does this mean in terms of 
funding obligations?) 
WPA requires between water and sewer 25% of expenditures in Available Working Capital 
(Calculated during Audit) (What does this mean in terms of funding obligations?) 

6.b.) Sewer - Bond requirement: Please describe what these obligations mean and add dollar values to each 
of the items listed below. 

WPA requires water and sewer debt service to be budgeted at 110% (110% of what value?) 
WPA requires between water and sewer a 110% debt ratio (What does this mean in terms of 
funding obligations?) 
WPA requires between water and sewer 25% of expenditures in Available Working Capital 
(Calculated during Audit) (What does this mean in terms of funding obligations?) 
AMKO Bond (sewer only) requires the equivalent of one payment in a reserve account to cover 
the last payment. (What is an AMKO bond and how much is “one” payment?) 

6.c) Trash 
This section should include a clear presentation of the anticipated increased costs associated with the 
increase tipping fee of $5.00 per ton at the Delta County landfill. What was the previous cost per ton, 
how many tons of trash does the Town dump at the landfill per year and are staff anticipating an 
increase in the amount of trash generate by in-town users? This level of transparency in this narrative 
document, would be helpful to citizens being asked to pay increased fees constituting increases of 11% 
to as much as 62% for users of a 3-yard dumpster. This is especially important since in-town citizens are 
required to use the city service for trash pickup. The narrative continues to be worked on in the 
ClearGov program. 
6.d.) Approved Resolutions 2020-18 (water rates) and 2020-19 (garbage rates) both indicate that, “The 
water rates (and trash rates) set forth herein shall become effective on December 1, 2020.” Does this 
mean that these new rates are to be applied to services provided beginning on December 1 or do these 
rates go into effect after the new budget is approved? The rates went in to effect this month and will be 
reflected on the first billing due in January, 2021. 
Salary Increases 
Thank you for the inclusion of the table identifying Payroll by Department in the Budget Overview, 
Personnel Changes section of ClearGov. It would have been especially helpful to have had this 
information early in the budget process in order that the trustees and public could have a better idea of 
how raises would affect all of the related associated increases in taxes and benefits and which budgets 
provide the highest percentage to various staff salaries.  Suggested salary changes – per the updated 
salary ranges identified by the Finance & Personnel Committee – were presented at the first budget 
work-session and discussed multiple times prior to the inclusion following the November 10th Board 
meeting.   
It’s now apparent that the revenues derived from Water, Sewer and Trash budgets provide the bulk of 
the salaries in Administration and Public Works. Comparing the budgets from 2018 to 2020, it’s also 
apparent that most positions have had raises, at least since 2018. After a period of little to no evaluation 
or appropriate modification to wages, in 2018 the Finance & Personnel Committee – at the direction of 
the Board -  began the task of updating the pay ranges for each job description for the Town and 

274



 

5 
 

committed to working over the next few years to getting each position to and then within their 
prospective range.  That is why you see consistent increases in wages in the 2019, 2020, and proposed 
2021 budget.  The proposed 2021 budget successfully meets the goal of the Board with each employee 
falling within the range as provided by the Finance and Personnel Committee. The optics of raising rates 
for water and trash without a thorough explanation of why these rates are being raised while giving 
quite generous raises (and associated increases in taxes and funds contributed to retirement accounts) 
appears quite “tone deaf,” given how hard 2020 has been on so many people being served by the Town 
of Paonia and the prospect that 2021 is also going to have considerable negative effects on town 
citizens.  This is understood and is the reason staff added the payroll by department narrative under 
Budget Overview – Personnel Changes which states “The following table delineates wages, taxes, and 
benefits by authorized position. Annual salaries are derived by multiplying hourly wages by 2080, the 
number of regular hours a full-time employee works in a year. Payroll includes minor percentage 
increases which can be used to increase wages of existing staff and/or filling staff vacancies as they may 
arise.  Budgeted payroll is not a reflection of actual salaries.  Wages cannot exceed the 
budgeted amount and will be determined by the department head.” 
Instead, I would suggest that this budget provide a specific amount of funds to each of the three 
Department heads and ask them to provide a one-time bonus to staff at the Department head’s 
discretion. This is an excellent way to reward exemplary work and does not obligate an increase in 
salaries, taxes and benefits that must be maintained into the 2022 budget and beyond. A pool for 
bonuses has been discussed the past two budget cycles and I do believe we are moving in that 
direction.  With that being said, and I am not implying that the wages the Town currently pays are not 
fair wages, I do want to add that merit bonuses can be a great way to reward a job well done, but are 
not a tool to use in replacement of paying fair wages to staff members. 
 
I appreciate the time and effort it takes to evaluate and provide feedback and we work diligently to 
answer and address almost every comment, suggestion, and criticism we receive – sometimes to our 
detriment.  I do ask the Board and the community to understand that the process to completely change 
the structure a department has used for multiple years is a time consuming one.  ClearGov is on it’s way 
to being an invaluable resource, but it is a new way to run the finance departments creation and 
presentation of financial information.  It will take time to learn all its nuances, add all the information 
we want to present – although it is not required – and really streamline the process for information to 
the public.  As with any budget, the towns budget is a living document, and is always being updated, 
modified, and tweaked.  This will never change.  So again I ask for a little patience, and a little trust, that 
we are all moving in the right direction, for the right reasons, for the good of our community. 
 
Thank you. 
 

275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Resolution 2020-25 Local Disaster Declaration Extension 

Summary:   

Continuing the disaster declaration regarding the Covid-19 Pandemic to end of March 2021 in 

coordination with CARES Act requirements for potential reimbursement of COVID related 

costs and as a show of continued commitment to the community of Paonia to practice 

recommended guidelines from Delta County and Colorado health departments as well as the 

CDC. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

294



Page 1 of 2 – Extension to Mar 31-2021 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION 2020-25 

 

ORDER DECLARING A LOCAL DISASTER IN AND FOR THE TOWN OF PAONIA 

  

WHEREAS, the Colorado Disaster Emergency Act, C.R.S. § 24-33.5-701, et. seq. (the “Act”), 

provides procedures for statewide and local prevention of, preparation for, response to, and 

recovery from disasters; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-33.5-709, a local disaster emergency may be declared 

unilaterally by the principal executive officer of a political subdivision; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-2-20(b) of the Town Municipal Code, the Mayor is designated 

as the executive head of the Town; and 

  

WHEREAS, this Declaration is issued pursuant to the authority granted to the Mayor of the Town 

of Paonia and issued with the approval and support of the Board of Trustees for the Town; and 

   

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, an "emergency" is an unexpected event that places life or 

property in danger and requires an immediate response through the use of state and community 

resources and procedures, and an "emergency epidemic" is cases of an illness or condition, 

communicable or noncommunicable, caused by bioterrorism, pandemic influenza, or novel and 

highly fatal infectious agents or biological toxins; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-33.5-709, this Declaration activates the response and 

recovery aspects of any applicable disaster emergency plans and authorizes the furnishing of aid 

and assistance under such plans; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-33.5-709(1), the declaration of a local emergency shall not 

be continued beyond a period of seven (7) days or removed except by action of the governing 

board of the political subdivision for the Town, the Board of Trustees; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-33.5-709(1), any order declaring, continuing, or terminating 

a local disaster "shall be given prompt and general publicity and shall be filed promptly with the 

county clerk and recorder, the [Town] clerk ... and with the office of emergency management"; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, because of the COVID-19 pandemic, which was recognized by the Governor of the 

State of Colorado on March 10, 2020, the Town is suffering and has suffered a disaster emergency 

as defined in the Act. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED on this 15th day of December 2020, that a 

disaster emergency is declared and extended in and for the Town of Paonia, beginning on January 

1, 2021, and ending on March 31, 2021 unless extended or amended by action of the Board of 

Trustees for the Town.   

 

295



Page 2 of 2 – Extension to Mar 31-2021 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Declaration shall be given prompt and general 

publicity, filed immediately with the office of the Delta County Emergency Manager and a copy 

filed with the Delta County Clerk and Recorder, as well as to the Colorado Office of Emergency 

Management. 

 
 

 

 
Mary Bachran, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 
 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk 

296



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety Committee – Accessory Dwelling 

Unit - Update 

Summary:   

GAPS Committee presents the updated discussion and potential direction for establishing 

regulations to permit accessory dwelling units (ADU) for Board review and direction. 

 

Notes: 

 

Attached is the summary report from GAPS discussion which included Administrator Corinne 

Ferguson and several members of the community were in attendance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

297



�ĐĐĞƐƐŽƌǇ��ǁĞůůŝŶŐ�hŶŝƚ�;��hͿ͗��ĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĚǁĞůůŝŶŐ�ƵŶŝƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăůů�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚŝĞƐ�;ŬŝƚĐŚĞŶ͕�ďĂƚŚƌŽŽŵͿ�
ĚŝƐƚŝŶĐƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ŚŽŵĞ͕�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�Žƌ�ĚĞƚĂĐŚĞĚ͕�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ZͲϭ�ǌŽŶĞ

'�W^�ZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽĚĞ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�ŽƌĚŝŶĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ���hƐ
�ŽĚĞ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ

ZĞŵŽǀĞ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĐůĞĂƌ�ůĂŶĚͲƚŽͲĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƌĂƚŝŽ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŚĂƉƚĞƌ�ϭϲ͕�ĂƌƚŝĐůĞ�ϯ͘�/ŶƐƚĞĂĚ͕�ƌĞůǇ�
ŽŶ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƐĞƚďĂĐŬƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƚŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƌŚŽŽĚ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌ

Ă͘

�Ž�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�Ă�ůŽƚ�ƐƋƵĂƌĞ�ĨŽŽƚĂŐĞ�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�;ZͲϮ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ϴ͕ϬϬϬ�ƐƋ�Ĩƚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ĚƵƉůĞǆͿď͘

ϭ͘

tĂƚĞƌ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ
DŽƌĂƚŽƌŝƵŵ͗�ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŽǁŶ�ĂƚƚŽƌŶĞǇ͕�ďƵƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƌĂƚŽƌŝƵŵ�ŵĂǇ�ĂůůŽǁ�
ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ���h�ŝŶ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŝŶĞ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�;Ğǆ͘��ŽŶǀĞƌƚĞĚ�ŐĂƌĂŐĞ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ŚĂƐ�
ǁĂƚĞƌͬƐĞǁĞƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞͿ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĚŝƐĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƌĂƚŽƌŝƵŵ͘

Ă͘

tŚĞŶ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂůůŽǁĂďůĞ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ���h�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚĂƉ�ƐŝǌĞ͖�
WƵďůŝĐ�tŽƌŬƐ�ŚĂƐ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚĂƉ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐĂƉĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ

/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂƉ�ŝƐ�ůĂƌŐĞ�ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŶƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ŚŽŵĞŽǁŶĞƌ�ĐĂŶ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ƚĂƉ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚ�Ă�ŵĞƚĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ���h͘

ŝ͘

/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂƉ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ůĂƌŐĞ�ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŶƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƵƐĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŚŽŵĞŽǁŶĞƌ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶůĂƌŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂƉ�;ϯͬϰΗ�ƚŽ�ϭΗ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂƉ�ĨĞĞ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�Žƌ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ĂŶ�
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƚĂƉ

ŝŝ͘

ď͘

Ϯ͘

WĂƌŬŝŶŐ�
ZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ŶŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ���h͖�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŚŽŵĞŽǁŶĞƌ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�
ĚĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƚĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�;ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�
ŽŶ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�Žƌ�ŽŶ�ƐƚƌĞĞƚ͕�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƌŚŽŽĚ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌͿ

Ă͘
ϯ͘

^ŝǌĞ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ
>ŝŵŝƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ŽĨ�ϱϬϬ�ƐƋ�Ĩƚ͕�Žƌ�Ϯϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ĚǁĞůůŝŶŐ�ĨůŽŽƌ�ĂƌĞĂĂ͘
DĂǆŝŵƵŵ�Ϯ�ďĞĚƌŽŽŵƐͬϭ�ďĂƚŚƌŽŽŵď͘
EŽ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϭ���h�ĂŶĚ�ϭ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ĚǁĞůůŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌ�ZͲϭ�ůŽƚĐ͘

ϰ͘

ZĞůĂƚŝŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ƚŽ�^ŚŽƌƚͲƚĞƌŵ�ZĞŶƚĂůƐ�;^dZƐͿ
^ŚŽƌƚͲƚĞƌŵ�ƌĞŶƚĂů�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ĂůůŽǁĂďůĞ�ƵƐĞ�ĨŽƌ���hƐ�ƵŶƚŝů�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞƐ�^dZ�
ƌĞŐƵůĂƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ďƵƚ�ŵĂǇ�ƚĂŬĞ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĨŝŶĂůŝǌĞ

Ă͘
ϱ͘

�ŽĂƌĚ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚĞĚ͗�^ƵŐŐĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�Ă�ĚƌĂĨƚ�ŽƌĚŝŶĂŶĐĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ

�ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϬ

��h�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ

298



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Regular Minutes: 

November 10, 2020 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

299



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

November 10, 2020 

  

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Regular Meeting held Tuesday, November 10, 2020, was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by 

Mayor Mary Bachran, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. Formal Video Record at: 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QJ4jfIMZLqg&t=4656s 

Roll Call 

PRESENT 

Mayor Bachran 

Trustee Bear 

Trustee Budinger 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 Agenda Approval 

 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to move the discussion items (9) Resolution 2020-18 Water Rates and 

Charges and (10) Resolution 2020-19 Garbage Rates to be discussed first under 

regular business.  

 

Announcements  

 The Paonia Elementary students will be brought in smaller groups to see the 

state's capital tree.  

 Mayor Bachran wished the chief of police a happy birthday. 

 

Paonia’s Great Rake – Paonia Elementary School Recognition  

 Mayor Bachran presented a certificate of recognition to the Paonia Elementary 

School Student Council for their service in the great rake at the Town Park.  

Proclamation for Hospice and Palliative Care Month 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

300



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

 Mayor Bachran signed the proclamation and proclaimed the month of November as 

Hospice & Palliative Care Month. The Hope West Delta County proclamation was 

included in the packet.  

Staff Reports 
 Administrator’s Report: 

 Local Bed and Breakfast has inquired about reducing the 500 feet limit for liquor 

licenses. 

 Addressed use of Twin Lakes property as a concrete washout location. In contact 

with the state about proper clean up methods. 

 Delta County’s COVID-19 website has been added to the Towns website for ease 

of access. 

 The sound system in the community room update is to be completed the week 

after Thanksgiving.  

 Discussion regarding COVID-19 – currently Delta County is in the orange. 

o Mayor Bachran has contacted Delta County requesting information on the 

incident rate for Paonia – Delta County stated that the reporting is across 

the board not for a specific zip code. 

 Meetings may be held virtual in the future due to COVID-19. 

 Trustee Pattison questioned what type of COVID-19 funds are reimbursable 

through the grant. 

o Sound system upgrade 

o Business grants – helps businesses in need of assistance  

o North Fork Senior Connections grants – helps people in need of assistance  

o PPE 

o Remote Working Upgrades 

 

Public Works report: 

 Continue to run the leaf vacuum. 

 Work on the storm sewer tie in on 2nd and Grand Avenue intersection will be 

completed the week of November 23rd. 

 The redlining of the map for water is ready to be uploaded. 

 Monday Browns Hill will be in Town to begin SCADA installation. 

 Work on Box Elder sidewalks should be completed the week of November 13th. 

 Trustee Knutson would like to see COVID-19 sewer testing. 

o Waiting for a response from labs 

o All 7 labs that do these types of tests are full. 

 Trustee Pattison commented regarding the auction of the old skid steer. 

o The resolution for auctioning off the skid steer will be presented at a 

future meeting.  

 Trustee Meck wanted to know when the 3rd street project will begin 

o The 3rd street project is delayed and will be scheduled soon.  

 

Police Report: 

301



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

 Police Officers are completing the required training - An ethics and anti-bias 

training are in the works.  

 Chief proudly announced that Back the Badge passed and thanked everyone for 

their support.  

 

Attorney Report: 

 Continue to work on the building inspector’s contract – a letter was sent on 

October 30th.  

 

 

Disbursements 
 Treasurer’s Report: 

 Treasurer King was absent, and Finance Officer Cindy Jones proceeded to report.  

 Reviewed disbursements and payroll. 

 Continue to work on the 2021 budget. 

 Disbursements were included in the packet.  

 

Disbursements Report: 

Motion by Trustee Knutson and seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried 

to approve the disbursements as provided.  

New Business 
Resolution 2020-18 Water Rates and Charges: 

 Discussion ensued regarding Resolution 2020-18 for the new water rates. 

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Trustee Pattison was concerned with the impact this would cause for low-income 

homes. 

o The Administrator reminded the community that the Town has a utility 

relief program for those who apply and are qualified for LEAP.  

 Trustee Pattison questioned if the water had to be an enterprise fund and use the 

taxes to pay for other projects.  

o Attorney Nerlin stated yes, it does as long as it is a municipal utility. 

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

302



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bear and carried with 5 ayes and 

1 nay. 

 

 Resolution 2020-19 Garbage Rates: 

 Discussion ensued Regarding Resolution 2020-19. The proposed garbage rates 

were included in the packet.  

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Trustee Pattison suggested an op-out of the trash pickup. 

o Trustee Meck and Mayor Bachran were not in favor of this option.  

 

Public Comment: 

 Community member Suzanne Watson was concerned with the cost of the spring 

clean-up, and with people randomly putting trash out by the alleys and signs, this 

forces the town to pick up trash that is at no cost to those who put it there. 

 Community member Thomas Markle was not in favor of how the data from big trash 

companies was compiled and then used to compare the cost of trash for a small town.  

o The Administrator stated that the data was used for informational purposes. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and carried with 5 ayes 

and 1 nay to adopt the resolution 2020-19 of the Town of Paonia establishing garbage 

rates and charges as presented.  

 

Charter Communication Franchise Agreement: 

 Discussion ensued regarding the review of the franchise agreement with charter 

communication  

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison  X   

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison  X   

Mayor Bachran      

303



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Attorney Nerlin explained the franchise agreement and requested feedback from the 

board members. 

 Trustee Knutson is in favor of the 3% collection of the annual gross revenue per the 

2012 agreement and would like to have a public access channel. 

 Cable franchise agreement payments are allocated to streets repairs and maintenance 

in the budget. 

 An increase to the franchise agreement is passed on by Charter to the customer.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Pattison and carried with 5 ayes 

and 1 nay to keep the Charter Communication Franchise Agreement at the 3% level.  

  

 

CIRSA – Excess Crime 2021 Renewal Quote: 

 2021 excess crime coverage documents were included in the packet. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger, and unanimously carried 

to adopt the CIRSA 2021 Excess Crime 2021 renewal quote to continue with additional 

$500,000 policy - $400 a year (included in the budget). 

 

 Public Works Water Sanitary Survey Results and Resolution Schedule: 

 Discussion ensued regarding the sanitary results – documents were included in the 

packet.  

 Trustee Meck was concerned with the results of the sanitary survey and would 

like for Public Works Director to keep on top of reporting and filing to the state 

and would like to see these reports get caught up. 

  Trustee Pattison would like to see monthly report updates. 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger  X   

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

304



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

 Discussed scheduling a tour of the sewer and water plants  

o Mayor suggested having a virtual tour. 

 

Public comments: 

 Community member Paige Smith suggested that the records be kept on-premises, 

concerned with reports not being filed, and suggested to have an educational 

meeting about water. 

 

Resolution 2020-20 Modification of Town Fee Schedule: 

 Discussion ensued by the Board on the recommended modification of the Town 

fee schedule.  

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger to set the dog tag fee at 

$45 for the life of the dog that is spayed.  

 Trustee Knutson withdrew the motion.  

 

Public Comments: 

 Community member Paige Smith stated that most of the fees have an 

ordinance attached to them and suggested that the ordinance be reviewed 

before making changes to the fees.  

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously carried to keep 

the current rates.  

 Discussion ensued on the building fee schedule. Paige Smith suggested 

clarifying the language to make it easier to understand.  

 Building fees will be addressed along with the contract.  

 Trustee Pattison would like to have the ordinance attached for each fee which 

needs to be reviewed annually. 

 

Resolution 2020-21 Withdrawal from Space to Create: 

 Mayor Bachran announced the withdrawal from Space to Create 

 Resolution 2020-21 withdrawal from Space to Create was included in the 

packet.  

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Bear and unanimously carried 

 to withdrawal from Space to Create. 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

305



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

 

Resolution 2020-22 Supervisory Authority of Town Administrator: 

 Resolution 2020-22 is to formalize the Mayor’s supervisory status of the 

Town Administrator position. 

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously carried 

to adopt Resolution 2020-22 Supervisory Authority of the Town Administrator. 

 

Town Administrator Six Month Review: 

 Trustee Knutson stated that each board member and the public will evaluate 

the town administrator. 

o 3-month review evaluation and priorities were included in the packet. 

o Compile all the data from the board and public 

o Hold an executive meeting to discuss the review 

 

Consent Agenda 

 Regular Minutes: 

10/27/2020 

Liquor License Renewal & Modification of Premise 

Blue Sage Center for the Arts  

 

Liquor License Renewal and Modification of Premises: 

 No issues noted 

 Liquor License and modification of premises application was included in the 

packet 

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

306



 

  

NOVEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 8 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried 

to approve the consent agenda excluding regular minutes for October 27, 2020. 

Mayor’s Report 
 Mayor’s Report 

 Attended the Juvenile Diversion program on October 29, 2020 

o Met with Brenda Burns case manager at the Center for Mental Health. 

o Police Department will be taking training on mental health.  

o Mayor and Trustee Budinger spoke with Region 10 regarding accessory 

dwelling units (ADUs).  

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel report: 

 Meeting November 11, 2020, at 3:30 pm for check signing. 

 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety report: 

 Meeting December 7th at 3:00 pm 

 Discussed establishing the Marijuana ordinance 

 Discussed Back the Badge. 

 Discussed ADUs and short-term rentals. 

 Discussed the concrete washout.  

 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities report: 

 Nothing to report. 

 

Tree Board: 

 Nothing to report. 

Adjournment 
 The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 8:49 pm 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

307



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Christmas Light Judges 

Summary:   

Announcement of Town staff or board member and family to judge Christmas lights 

throughout Town. 

 

Notes: 

 

Three winners are selected and will be announced at the first meeting in January. Winners 

receive: 

 

1st: $75 

2nd: $50 

3rd: $25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

308



 

December 10, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

309



 

December 11, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) 

and not involving: any specific employees who have requested discussion 

of the matter in open session; any member of this body or any elected 

official; the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of 

an elected official; or personnel policies that do not require the discussion 

of matters personal to particular employees; specific to Town 

Administrator 6-month review. 

For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving 

legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-

402(4)(b); Specific to Eric Pace v. Town of Paonia 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

310


	Top
	1.	ASF - Staff Reports
	ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	Administrators Report
	USGS Renewal
	Blotter
	20201211 BOT ATTY MEMO

	2.	Treasurers Report
	ASF -Treasurer&#39;s Report

	3.	Regular Disbursements
	ASF - Disbursements
	Disbursements_Redacted

	4.	End of Year Disbursement Approval
	ASF - End of Year Disbursement

	5.	Advisory Water Committee Appointments
	ASF - Advisory Water
	Advisory Water- Bill Brunner
	Advisory Water- Phil Ceriani
	Advisory Water- Mike Drake
	Advisory Water- Mike Heck
	Advisory Water- Chris Kendall
	Advisory Water- Thomas Markle
	Advisory Water- Robert Orlando

	6.	Acquisition of Snow Plow Sander
	ASF - Snow Plow
	Snow Spreader Product Specifications

	7.	Resolution 2020-22 Accepting Coordinated Election Results
	ASF - 2020-22 Election
	2020-22 Certification of Election Results

	8.	Resolution 2020-23 Mill Levy
	ASF - Res 2020-23 Mill Levy
	2020-23 2021 Mill Levy Resolution

	9.	Resolution 2020-24 Budget for 2021
	ASF - Res 2020-24  Budget
	2020-24 2021 Budget Resolution
	Proposed 2021 Budget Book_ClearGov
	Smith_BudgetQ&A
	SWatson Budget Correspondence

	10.	2020-25 Local Disaster Designation Extension
	ASF - Resolution 2020-25 Local Disaster Declaration Extension
	2020-25 Town Local Disaster Declaration Extension

	11.	Governmental Affairs & Public Safety Committee - Accessory Dwelling Unit - Update
	ASF - GAPS ADU
	ADU Summary for the Board of Trustees (002)

	Consent Agenda
	ASF 5 - Consent Agenda
	111020_RegMin_Draft_CLERK CHANGES

	12.	Christmas Light Judges
	ASF - Christmas Lights

	13.	Committee Reports
	ASF 10 -Committee Reports

	14.	Executive Session - Six Month Administrator Review
	ASF - Executive Session

	Bottom

